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Narrative Report 

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Fire Authority was formed on 1 April 1998 
following Loca l Government reorganisation in Cambridgeshire. 

The Fire Authority must prepare and publish a Statement of Accounts annually. 
Its purpose is to give electors, local taxpayers, Fire Authority Members, 
employees and other interested parties clear information about the Fire 
Authority's finances. 

Publication of these accounts, which have been prepared in accordance with the 
'Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom for 
2018/19', which is based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), 
is required under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Accounts 
and Audit (England) Regulations 2015. 

The purpose of the Statement of Accounts aim is to provide information on: 

• the cost of providing Fire Authority services in the financial year; 
• how these services were paid for; 
• what assets the Fire Authority owned at the end of the financial year; and 
• what was owed, to and by, the Fire Authority at the end of the financial year. 

This report gives a guide to the most important matters included in the 
Statement of Accounts. 

Performance 
The Authority will undertake a fu ll refresh of the Integrated Risk Management 
Plan (IRMP) during 2020/21. Performance against the current IRMP, which 
covers the period 2017/18 to 2019/20, is regularly reported to the Fire 
Authority. The most recent report was presented to the Authority's Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee on 28th May 2019. 

Financial Outlook 

The Government's Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) reduced levels of 
central government funding for Fire and Rescue Services. In response to this, the 
Fire Authority has an Efficiency Plan in place. This is to show how the Fire Authority 
plans to improve the service it provides whilst managing with reduced real-term 
funding levels. The Efficiency Plan can be viewed via the following link: 

http://www. cambsfire .gov.uk/Efficiency%20Plan%202016-2020. pdf 

The future governance role of the Fire Authority 

The Government has announced that in Cambridgeshire, responsibility for the 
governance of the service will transfer from the Fire Authority to the Police and 
Crime Commissioner (PCC). At this time, the Fire Authority is going through a 
Judicial Review and timescales remain uncertain. 
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The Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2019 consists of the 
following : -

The Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts 
This sets out the respective responsibilities of the Fire Authority and the 
Treasurer for preparing the Statement of Accounts. 

The Movement in Reserves Statement 
This statement shows the movement in year on the different reserves held by 
the Fire Authority analysed between usable and other reserves. The surplus or 
(deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of 
providing the Fire Authority's service, more details of which are shown in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the 
amount to be funded from taxation. The Fire Authority raises taxation to cover 
expenditure in accordance with statutory requirements; this may be different 
from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement. 

The Balance Sheet 
This shows information on the financial position of the Fire Authority as at the 31 
March 2019, including the level of balances and reserves at the Fire Authority's 
disposal, its long term indebtedness and the value of the assets held by the Fire 
Authority. 

The Cash Flow Statement 
This shows the cash and cash equiva lent movements in and out of the Fire 
Authority due to transactions with third parties for revenue and capital purposes. 

The Statement of Accounting Policies 
This summarises the accounting rules used to prepare t he Statement of 
Accounts. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
These explain in more detail a number of entries in the core financial 
statements. 

The Firefighter Pension Fund Accounts 
These set out the payments made and received in respect of the Firefighter 
Pension Schemes. 

The Net Asset Statement 
This sets out the balance of Firefighters Pension funding payable to / from 
central government. 

External Borrowing 
The Fire Authority has existing long term borrowing from the Public Works Loans 
Board (PWLB), totall ing £3,200k, which has been taken out to fund the Fire 
Authority's historical capital programme. No new borrowing was taken during 
the financial year. 
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Pensions Liability 
The Fire Authority participates in five defined benefit pension schemes. 
Although the benefits wil l not actually be payable until employees retire, the Fire 
Authority has a commitment, under International Accounting Standard 19 -
Employee Benefits, to account for the significant liability that is disclosed within 
the Balance Sheet. 

Opinion 

In my opinion the statement of accounts present a true and fair view of the 
financia l position of the Fire Authority at 31 March 2019 and its income and 
expenditure for the year then ended. 

Matthew Warren CPFA 

Treasurer 
Date: 3ot.r... "3 v....½ 2C IC\. 

Signed on behalf of the Fire Authority: 

I confirm that these accounts were approved and events after the 31 March 
2019 up to the .;,c;,\th:;?":~~~'.1 .. were taken into account by the Cam= bor/4cth, ~ 
Cllr Kevin Reynolds 
On behalf of Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Fire Authority 

For further information concernina anv items contained in this Statement olease 
write to: 

The Treasurer 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Fire Authority 
Hinchingbrooke Cottage 
Brampton Road 
Huntingdon 
Cambs PE29 2NA 
or telephone (01480) 444500 
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Summary of the Financial Year 

Revenue Spending 

The figures used in this summary are taken from the Fire Authority's 
management accounts and will be different in some areas to the numbers in the 
Statement of Accounts. The Fire Authority's total net expenditure was 
£30.S0lm. This is made up of £33.167m (expenditure) less £2.666m (other 
income). The following charts show where the monies we received came from 
and how we spent it. 

Expenditure and income charts 

10.5% 

58.8% 

EXPENDITURE 
£33.167m 

INCOME 
£33.167m 
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The Fire Authority held £2.506m in general reserves as at 31 March 2019, which 
equals 8% of revenue budget. The General Reserve is required to provide the 
Fire Authority with financial flexibility when dealing with unexpected 
circumstances. Specific Reserves have also been established to provide for 
future or predicted liabilities. A statement detailing our earmarked reserves is 
set out at Note 9 to the Statement of Accounts. 

A summarised comparison of the Fire Authority's expenditure for the year to the 
budget is presented in the table on page 8. A reconciliation between the figures 
shown in this table and the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
is shown in the Expenditure and Funding Analysis on page 11. 

The table below shows the cash movements to reconcile with that in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement (page 12). 

General reserve balance as at 31st March 2018 

Transfer to Revenue C/forwards Reserve 

General reserve balance as at 31st March 2019 

£000's 

2,471 

35 

2,506 

The Fire Authority undertook a wholetime recruitment campaign to ensure that 
operational firefighter numbers remained above or at the budgeted position. 
Owing to the lead time required to train firefighters and the estimated 
retirement profile over the next 18 months, additional firefighters over that 
budgeted were recruited. A separate reserve was earmarked to fund the 
additional cost and will be applied as is required. No application of this reserve 
was applied in 2018/19, owing to underspends elsewhere in the budget. 

The primary underspend against the budget related to IT Shared Services 
budget where software licensing was paid upfront in 2017 /18. However, this 
license will expire at the end of 2019 and a new license model will be required . 
The remaining underspend, after offsetting the cost of additional firefighters, has 
been applied to fund capital expenditure. 
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s ummarv manc,a a F" . IT bl e 
Revised Actual to 

Description Budget Date Variance Variance 
£'000 £'000 £'000 % 

Full Time Firefighters 11 ,113 11,353 240 2.16% 

Control Room Staff 1,534 1,548 14 0.91% 

Local Govt. Employees 3,335 3,337 2 0.06% 

Senior Management (Hay) 2,801 2,804 3 0.11% 

Recruitment & Training 691 769 78 11.29% 

Fire Allowances 521 509 -12 -2.30% 

EMPLOYEE COSTS 19,995 20,320 325 1.63% 

Property Maintenance 427 457 30 7.03% 

Insurance 231 190 -41 -17.75% 

Energy Costs 282 256 -26 -9.22% 

Cleaning 153 142 -1 1 -7.19% 

Rents & Rates 639 671 32 5.01% 

PREMISES 1,732 1,716 -16 0.92% 

Car & Cycle Allowances 68 97 29 42.65% 

Vehicle Running Expenses 167 195 28 16.77% 

Vehicle Insurance 191 160 -31 -16 .23% 

TRANSPORT AND MOVEABLE PLANT 426 452 26 6.10% 

Office Expenses 355 262 -93 -26.20% 

IT & Communications Equip. 2,113 1,767 -346 -16.37% 

Fire Equipment 351 315 -36 -10.26% 

Uniforms & Clothing 570 558 -12 -2.11 % 

Other Supplies & Services 1,233 1,160 -73 -5.92% 

SUPPLIESANDSERV~ES 4,622 4,062 -560 12.12% 

Debt Charges 4,027 3,149 -878 -21 .80% 

External Interest -90 -1 10 -20 22.22% 

CAPITAL FINANCING 3,937 3,039 -898 22.81% 

CONTROLLABLE EXPENDITURE 30,712 29,589 -1,123 3.66% 

Other Income -1, 719 -2,020 -301 17.5 1% 

Other Government Grants -468 -537 -69 14.74% 

CONTROLLABLE INCOME -2,187 -2,557 -370 16.92% 

NET CONTROLLABLE EXPENDITURE 28,525 27,032 -1,493 5,23% 

Pensions - Injury Awards 611 653 42 6.87% 

Operational Fire Budget 2,849 2,816 -33 -1 .16% 

SAFETY-NETTED EXPENDITURE 3,460 3,469 9 0.26% 

NET EXPENDITURE 31 ,985 30,501 -1,484 4.64% 

GranUPrecept Income -28,386 -29,011 -625 

Transfers to/from earmarked reserves -3,599 -1,525 2,074 

Year end transfer to Capital Reserve 0 0 

CONTRIBUTIONS -31,985 -30,536 1,449 

CONTRIBUTION TO GENERAL RESERVE 0 -35 -35 
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Capital Spending 

The table below detai ls the capital expenditure and how this was financed. 

Expenditure 
Vehicles 
IT & Equipment 
Building Works 
Assets Under Construction 

Financed By 
Application of Capital Receipts 
Revenue Contribution 

£000's 
696 
603 

1,144 
136 

171 
2,408 

£000's 

2,579 

2,579 

This vehicles expenditure covers the purchase of operational and non
operational vehicles. During the year the Fire Authority completed the build of 
three fire appliances and purchased 5 other vehicles. 

This budget also covers the maintenance of existing properties and the 
invest ment in new facilities. 

The equipment relates to heavy duty rescue equipment, breathing apparatus, 
and appliance ladders. 

The ICT capital budget covers the purchase of major IT systems, hardware and 
the upgrade of communications equipment. 

Revenue Contribution includes the movement in creditors not funded in year. 
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Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts 

The Fire Authority's Responsibilit ies 

The Fire Authority is required t o : 

• make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to 
ensure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of 
those affairs. In this Fire Authority, that officer is the Treasurer; 
• manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources 
and safeguard its assets; 
• approve t he St atement of Accounts. 

The Treasurer's Responsibilit ies 

The Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of the Fire Aut hority's Statement 
of Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC 
Code of practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the 
Code). 

In preparing t his Statement of Accounts, the Treasurer has: 

• selected suitable accounting policies and t hen applied them consistently; 
• made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent and 
• complied with the Code. 

The Treasurer has also : 

• kept proper accounting records which were up to date and 
• taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities. 

~ 
1!\.J "\ , "'-..) r J"',.~\ 

Matthew Warren CPFA 
Treasurer 

Date: 3o \ , \ 2c , °' 
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Expenditure and Funding Analysis 

This analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources 
(government grants, rents, council tax and business rates) by local authorities in 
comparison with those resources consumed or earned by authorities in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. Income and 
expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is 
presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Please note this is not a primary statement to the accounts. 
2017/18 2018/19 

Net Adjustments Net Net Adjustments Net 
Expenditure Expenditure Expenditure Expenditure 

Chargeable to In the Chargeable to in the 
the General Compre- the General Compre-

Fund Balance hensive Fund Balance hensive 
Income and Income and 
Expenditure Expenditure 
Statement Statement 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
22,732 (313) 22,419 Employee Costs 23,541 11,489 35,030 

1,353 1,353 Premises Costs 1,584 1,584 

695 695 Transport and Plant 729 729 

3,969 3,969 Supplies and 4,435 4,435 
Services 

3,234 3,234 Depreciation and 3,762 3,762 
Amortisation 

(1,352) ( 1,352) Other Income ( 1,934) (1,934) 

28,749 1,569 30,318 Net Cost of 30,289 13,317 43,606 
Services 

(29,238) 8,664 (20,574) Other Income and (28,799) 8,649 (20,150) 
Expenditure 

(489) 10,233 9,744 Surplus or Deficit 1,490 21,966 23,456 
on Provision of 
Services 

(12,016) Opening Combined (12,505) 
General Fund 
Balance 

(489) 1,490 
Plus/ less Surplus or 
Deficit on the 
General Fund 
Balance for the Year 
(Statutory basis) 

Closing Combined 
(12,505) General Fund (11,015) 

Balance 
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shows the accounting 
cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. The 
Fire Authority ra ises taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with statutory 
requirements; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation 
position is shown in both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. 

2017/18 

Expenditure Income 

£000 £000 
22,419 

1,353 

695 

3,969 

3,234 

(1,352) 

31,670 (1,352) 

196 

9,124 (941) 

(28,953) 

40,990 (31,246) 

Net 

£000 
22,419 Employee Costs 

1,353 Premises Costs 

695 Transport and Plant 

3,969 Supplies and Services 

3,234 Depreciation and 
Amortisation 

(1,352) Other Income 

30,318 Cost of Services 

196 other Operating 
Expenditure 

8,183 Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure 

(28,953) Taxation and Non Specific 
Grant Income 

9,744 Surplus or Deficit on 
Provision of Services 

(2,130) Surplus or deficit on 
revaluation of Property, 
Plant and Equipment 

(637) Impairment adjustment on 
non-current assets applied 
to the Revaluation Reserve 

463 Remeasurement of the net 
defined benefit liabil ity / 
asset 

(2,304} Other Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 

7,440 Total Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 
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2018/19 

Expenditure Income 

£000 £000 
35,030 

1,584 

729 

4,435 

3,762 

45,540 

288 

9,915 

55,743 

(1,934) 

(1,934) 

(1,034) 

(29,319) 

(32,287) 

Net 

£000 
35,030 

1,584 

729 

4,435 

3,762 

{1,934) 

43,606 

288 

8,881 

(29,319) 

23,456 

(727) 

(31) 

(2,564) 

(3,322) 

20,134 



Movement in Reserves Statement 

The Movement in Reserves Statement shows the movement from the start of the year to the end on the different reserves held by the 
Authority, analysed into 'usable reserves' ( ie those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other 'unusable 
reserves'. The Statement shows how the movements in year of the Fire Authority's reserves are broken down between gains and losses 
incurred in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and the statutory adjustments required to return to the amounts 
chargeable to counci l tax for the year. The Net Increase/Decrease line shows the statutory General Fund Balance movements in t he year 
fol lowing those adjustments. 

Earmarked Capital 
General General Capital Grants Un-

Fund Fund Total General Receipts applied Total Usable Unusable Total 
Balance Reserves Fund Balance Reserve Account Reserves Reserves Reserves 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Balance at 31 March 2018 (2,472) (10,033) (12,505) (1,433) (2,586) (16,524) 283,223 266,699 

Movement in reserves 
during 2018/19 

Surplus or deficit on the 23,456 - 23,456 - - 23,456 - 23,456 
provision of services 

Other Comprehensive Income / - - - - - - (3,322) (3,322) 
Expenditure 

Total Comprehensive 23,456 - 23,456 - - 23,456 (3,322) 20,134 
Income and Expenditure 

Adjustments between (21,966) - (21,966) 57 (1) (21,910) 21,910 -
accounting basis and funding 
basis under regulations 

Net Increase or Decrease 1,490 - 1,490 57 (1) 1,546 18,588 20,134 
before Transfers to 
Earmarked Reserves 

Transfers to/ from Earmarked (1,524) 1,524 - - - - - -
Reserves 

Increase or Decrease in (34) 1,524 1,490 57 (1) 1,546 18,588 20,134 
2018/19 

Balance at 31 March 2019 (2,506) (8,509) (11,015) (1,376) (2,587) (14,978) 301,811 286,833 
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Earmarked Capital 
General General Capital Grants Un-

Fund Fund Total General Receipts applied Total Usable Unusable Total 
Balance Reserves Fund Balance Reserve Account Reserves Reserves Reserves 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Balance at 31 March 2017 (2,423) (9,593) ( 12,016) (1,206) (4,224) (17,446) 276,705 259,259 

Movement in reserves 
during 2017/18 

Surplus or deficit on the 9,744 9,744 9,744 9 ,744 
provision of services 

other Comprehensive Income / (2,304) (2,304) 
Expenditure 

Total Comprehensive 9,744 9,744 9,744 (2,304) 7 ,440 
Income and Expenditure 

Adjustments between (10,233) (10,233) (227) 1,638 (8,822) 8,822 
account ing basis and funding 
basis under regulat ions 

Net Increase or Decrease (489) (489) (227) 1,638 922 6,518 7,440 
before Transfers to 
Earmarked Reserves 

Transfers to/ f rom Earmarked 440 (440) 
Reserves 

Increase or Decrease in (49) (440) (489) (227) 1,638 922 6,518 7,440 
2017/18 

Balance at 31 March 2018 (2,472) (10,033) (12,505) (1,433) (2,586) (16,524) 283,223 266,699 
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Balance Sheet 

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities 
recognised by the Fire Authority. The net assets of the Fire Authority (assets less liabi lities) 
are matched by the reserves held by the Fire Authority. Reserves are reported in two 
categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, ie those reserves that the Fire 
Authority may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of 
reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve 
that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second category of 
reserves is those that the Fire Authority is not able to use to provide services. This category 
of reserves includes reserves Statements that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example 
the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if 
the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement line 'Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under 
regulations'. 

31 March 2018 

£000 
42,606 Property, Plant and Equipment 

204 Intangible Assets 

42,810 Long Term Assets 

11,248 Short-Term Investments 

3 Inventories 

3,599 Short-Term Debtors 

4,688 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

19,538 Current Assets 

(16) Short-Term Borrowing 

(2,852) Short-Term Creditors 

(371) Provisions 

(3,239) Current Liabilities 

(639) Long-Term Creditors 

(3,200} Long-Term Borrowing 

(321,969) Other Long-Term Liabi lities 

(325,808) Long Term Liabilities 

(266,699) Net Assets 

(16,524) Usable Reserves 

283,223 Unusable Reserves 

266,699 Total Reserves 
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Note 13 

Note 15 

Note 16 

Note 13 

Note 17 

Note 13 

Note 13 

Note 29 

Note 18 

Note 19 

31 March 2019 

£000 
41,708 

217 

41,925 

10,257 

7 

4,502 

3,370 

18,136 

(16) 

(2,921) 

(450) 

(3,387) 

(638) 

(3,200) 

(339,669) 

(343,507) 

(286,833) 

(14,978) 

301,811 

286,833 



Cash Flow Statement 

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Authority 
during the reporting period. The statement shows how the Authority generates and uses cash 
and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. 
The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent 
to which the operations of the Authority are funded by way of taxation and grant income or 
from the recipients of services provided by the Authority. Investing activities represent the 
extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute 
to the Authority's future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are 
useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capita l (i.e. borrowing) t o the 
Authority. 

2017/18 

£000 
9,744 Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services 

(11,552) Adjustment to surplus or deficit on the provision of 
services for noncash movements 

227 Adjustment for items included in the net surplus or 
deficit on the provision of services that are investing or 
financing activities 

(1,581) Net cash flows from operating activities 

1,665 Net cash flows from investing activities 

84 Net (increase) or decrease in cash and cash 
equivalents 

4,772 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 
reporting period 

4,688 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 
reporting period 
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2018/19 

£000 
23,456 

(23,718) 

115 

(147} 

1,465 

1,318 

4,688 

3,370 



Note 1 - Accounting Policies 

Al .1 General Principles 

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Fire Authority's transactions for the financial year 
and its position at the year-end. The Fire Authority is required to prepare an annual Statement 
of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015. These Regulations require 
the Statement of Accounts to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. 
These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 
United Kingdom for 2018/19, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, 
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial 
instruments. The principal accounting policies have been applied consistently throughout the 
year. 

Al.2 Accruals of Income and Expenditure 

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are 
made or received. In particular: 

• Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Fire Authority transfers the significant 
risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or 
service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Fire Authority. 

• Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Fire Authority can measure 
reliably the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic 
benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Fire Authority. 

• Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed - where there is a gap 
between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories 
on the Balance Sheet. 

• Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are 
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made. 

• Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively 
as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial 
instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract. 

• Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or 
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where 
debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue 
for the income that might not be collected. 

Al.3 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financia l institutions repayable without 
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments 
that mature in three months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible 
to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. 

Al.4 Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors 

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or t o correct 
a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the 
current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period 
adjustment. 
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Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or 
the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, 
other events and conditions on the Fire Authority's financial position or financial performance. 
Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting 
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always 
been appl ied. 

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending 
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 

Al.5 Charges to Revenue for Non-current Assets 

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is debited with the following amounts 
to record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year: 

• depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service 

• revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no 
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off 

• amortisation of intangible assets attributable to the service. 

The Fire Authority is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and 
impairment losses or amortisation. However, it is required to make an annual contribution from 
revenue towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement equal to an amount 
calcu lated on a prudent basis determined by the Fire Authority in accordance with statutory 
guidance. Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisation are therefore 
replaced by the contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction 
within the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the 
difference between the two. 

Al.6 Employee Benefits 

Benefits Payable During Employment 

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled wholly within twelve months of the 
year-end. They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick 
leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits ( e.g. cars) for current employees and are recognised 
as an expense for services in the year in which employees render service to the authority. An 
accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, e.g. time off in lieu) 
earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry forward 
into the next financial year. The accrual is made at the wage and salary rates applicable in the 
following accounting year, being the period in which the employee takes the benefit. The accrual 
is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the 
Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday entitlements are charged to revenue in the 
financial year in which the holiday absence occurs. 

Termination Benefits 

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Fire Authority to 
terminate an officer's employment before the normal retirement date or an officer's decision to 
accept voluntary redundancy. They are charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate service 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when the Fire Authority is 
demonstrably committed to the termination of employment of an officer or group of officers or 
making an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy. 

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require 
the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Fire Authority to the 

18 



pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant 
accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to 
and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension 
enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension 
fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. 

There is a requirement for a disclosure note setting out the number of exit packages agreed, 
analysed between compulsory redundancies and other departures. The total cost of packages 
in each band must also be disclosed. Please see note 24 . 

Post-employment Benefits 

Employees of the Fire Authority are members of the following pension schemes: 

• The Local Government Pension Scheme for non-uniformed and control room employees, 
administered by Cambridgeshire County Council. This is a funded scheme, meaning that the 
Fire Authority and employee pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to 
balance the pensions liabilities with investment assets. 

•The four Firefighters Pension schemes for uniformed employees. A separate account detailing 
the 2018/19 transactions and liabilities is shown within the Firefighter Pension Fund Account. 

These schemes provide defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), 
which are earned as employees worked for the Authority. 

• The liabi lities of the Cambridgeshire County Council pension fund attributable to the Fire 
Authority are included in the Balance Sheet, along with those of the Firefighters' schemes, on 
an actuarial basis using the projected unit method - i.e. an assessment of the future payments 
that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on 
assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc., and projections of projected 
earnings for current employees. 

• Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 2.4% (based 
on the indicative rate of return on high quality AA rated corporate bonds). 

• There are no assets in the Firefighters schemes. The assets of Cambridgeshire County Council 
pension fund attributable to the Fire Authority are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair 
value: 

• quoted securities - current bid price 

• unquoted securities - professional estimate 

• unitised securities - current bid price 

• property - market value. 

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components: 

• current service cost - the increase in the present value of a defined benefit obligation 
(liability) resulting from employee service in the current period. This is allocated in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for which the employees 
worked. 

• past service costs - the change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation for 
employee service in prior periods, resulting from a plan (scheme) amendment (i.e. the 
introduction or withdrawal of, or change to, a defined benefit plan) or a curtailment (i.e. a 
significant reduction by the Fire Authority in the number of employees covered by a plan). It is 

19 



debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 

• any gain or loss on settlements - a settlement is a transaction that eliminates all further 
legal or constructive obligations for part or all of the benefits provided under a defined benefit 
plan, other than a payment of benefits to, or on behalf of, employees that is set out in the 
terms of the plan and included in the actuarial assumptions. However, if the plan is replaced 
by a new plan that offers benefits that are, in substance, the same, the termination of a plan 
is not a settlement. 

• net interest on the net defined benefit pensions' liability - the change during the period 
in the net defined benefit liability that arises from the passage of time. The net interest on the 
net defined benefit liability comprises the interest income on plan assets and interest cost on 
the defined benefit obligation. It is charged to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and is calculated 
by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning 
of the period to the net defined benefit liability at the beginning of the period - taking into 
account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of 
contribution and benefit payments. 

• Re measurements comprising: 

• actuarial gains and losses - changes in the net pensions liabi lity that arise because 
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial va luation or because 
the actuaries have updated their assumptions - charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 

• return on plan assets - excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined 
benefit liability - This is defined as interest, dividends and other income derived from the plan 
assets, together with realised and unrealised gains and losses on the plan assets, less: 

any costs of managing plan assets, and 

any tax payable by the plan itself, other than tax included in the actuarial assumptions 
used to measure the present value of the defined benefit obligation. 

It is charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 

• Contributions paid to the Cambridgeshire County Council pension fund and Firefighters' 
funds - amounts paid by the employer to reduce scheme liabilities 

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to be 
charged with the amount payable by the Authority to the pension fund or directly to pensioners 
in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the 
Movement in Reserves Statement, t his means that there are appropriations to and from the 
Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace 
them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts 
payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve 
thereby measures the beneficia l impact to the General Fund of being required to account for 
retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees. 

Discretionary Benefits 

The Fire Authority also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement 
benefits in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an 
award to any member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and 
accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme. 
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Al. 7 Financial Instruments 

A financial asset or liability is recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Fire Authority becomes 
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This will normally be the date that a 
contract is entered into but may be later if there are conditions that need to be satisfied. 

Financial Liabilities 

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Fire Authority becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair 
value and are subsequently carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing 
and Investment Income and Expenditure line on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement for interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by 
the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that 
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount 
at which it was originally recognised. 

For most of the borrowing that the Fire Authority has, this means that the amount presented 
in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest 
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for 
the year according to the loan agreement. 

Financial Assets 

Financial Assets at amortised cost are recognised on the Ba lance Sheet when the Fire Authority 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are init ially 
measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits 
to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the 
asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. 

The Fire Authority has no Availab le for Sale Assets. 

A1.8 Government Grants and Contributions 

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants, third party 
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Fire Authority when there is 
reasonable assurance that: 

• the Fire Authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 

• the grants or contributions will be received. 

Amounts recognised as due to the Fire Authority are not credited to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been 
satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service 
potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be 
consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must 
be returned to the transferor. 

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are 
carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or 
contribution is credited to the relevant service line ( attributable revenue grants and 
contributions) or Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income and Expenditure (non-ringfenced 
revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 
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Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, 
they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital 
Grants Unapplied reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment 
Account. 

Al.9 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods 
or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be 
used during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment. 

Recognition 

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is 
capitalised on an accruals basis subject to a de minimis of £7,500 for vehicles and £10,000 for 
all other assets, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service 
potential associated with the item will flow to the Fire Authority and the cost of the item can 
be measured reliably . Expenditure that is below the de minimis or maintains but does not add 
to an asset's potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and 
maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred. 

Measurement 

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising: 

• the purchase price 

• any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to 
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management; and 

• the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site 
on which it is located. 

The Fire Authority does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under 
construction. 

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its current value, unless 
the acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the 
cash flows of the Fire Authority). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, 
the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the Fire Authority. 

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases: 

• Assets under construction and vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment - depreciated 
historical cost 

• Land and buildings current value 

• all other assets - current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the 
asset in its existing use. 

Where there is no market-based evidence of current value because of the specialist nature of 
an asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of current value. 

Where non-property assets have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated 
historical cost basis is used as a proxy for current value. 

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to 
ensure that their carrying amount is not materially different from their current value at the 
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year-end, but as a minimum every three years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits 
to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. 

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for as follows: 

• where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, 
the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 
accumulated gains) 

• where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the 
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into 
the Capital Adjustment Account. 

Impairment 

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may 
be impaired . Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, 
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the ca rrying 
amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. 

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for as follows: 

• where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 
accumulated gains) 

• where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service lines in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant 
service lines in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of 
the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not 
been recognised. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic 
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets 
without a determinable finite useful life (i .e. freehold land) and assets that are not yet avai lable 
for use (i.e. assets under construction). 

A full year's depreciation is applied in the year of purchase and none applied in the year of sale. 

Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 

• Buildings - stra ight-line allocation over the useful life of the property as estimated by 
the valuer. 

• Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment - straight line allocation, of each class of assets 
in the Balance Sheet, over the useful life of the asset as advised by a suitably qualified officer 

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately. 

23 



Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current 
value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable 
based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the 
Capital Adjustment Account. 

Disposals 

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount for the asset in the 
Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant or Equipment) is written off to the other Operating 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain 
or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off 
against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains 
accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment 
Account. 

Capital receipts are generally categorised as those for which the disposal amount is in excess 
of £10,000, although some exceptions apply. Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from 
the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current 
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing . Amounts are 
appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. 

Subsequent measurement is in accordance with the Property, Plant and Equipment policy and 
are depreciated accordingly. 

Al .10 Reserves 

The Fire Authority sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover 
contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance 
in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is 
incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against council tax for the expenditure. 

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial 
instruments, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the 
Fire Authority - these reserves are explained in the relevant policies. 
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Note 2 - Accounting Standards Issued, Not Adopted 

Accounting standards that have been issued but not adopted 

Under The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting disclosure of the impact of accounting 
standards issued but not yet adopted is required. After a review of the relevant standards the 
fol lowing has been determined: 

• Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014 - 2016 cycle 
• IFRIC 22 foreign currency transactions and advance consideration 
• IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatments 
• Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Prepayment features with negative 

compensation 

Following a review of the relevant standards above, it has been determined that there would 
be no material changes to the accounts if these were to have been adopted. 

Note 3 - Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Pol icies 

In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the Fire Authority has had to make certain 
judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. 
The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are: 

• There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government. 
However, the Fire Authority has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide 
an indication that the assets of the Fire Authority might be impaired as a result of a need to 
close facilities and reduce levels of service provision. 

• The fa ir value of the PWLB loan is disclosed in the accounts using the new loan rate from 
the market rather than the premature loan rate from PWLB. The new loan rate is felt to be 
more appropriate to use as there is no intention to repay the loan early. This treatment is 
consistent to that in previous years. The difference between the two is £1.041m based on the 
differing calculation methods. 
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Note 4 - Assumptions Made about the Future and Other Major Sources of 

Estimation Uncertainty 

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by 
the Fire Authority about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking 
into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because 
balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from 
the assumptions and estimates. 

The items in the Fire Authority's Balance Sheet at 31 March 2019 for which there is significant 
risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows: 

Land and Buildings (Carrying value £32,816K) 

- Based on this year's movements in indices and revaluations the valuations in following years 
could have a material impact. 

- The effect of a 1 % difference in revaluations would equal £328k. 

Pensions Liability (Carrying value £325,629K) 

- Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements 
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes 
in retirement age, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. A firm of / 
consulting actuaries is engaged to provide the Fire Authority with expert advice about the 
assumptions to be applied. 

- The effect on net pensions liability of changes in individual assumpt ions can be measured. 
Assumptions are detailed in note 29. 

Note 5 - Events After the Balance Sheet Date 

Post Balance Sheet events occur between the Balance Sheet date (31 March) and the date on 
which the accounts are authorised for issue. These may be adjusting events - i.e. t he figures 
recorded in the accounts must be changed, or are non-adjusting events, for which there must 
be a note to the financial statements, but no actual change to the figures. Under the Code, 
adjusting events do not require a note, but material events would generally have to be 
explained. The existence of Post Balance Sheet Events is reviewed each time the Statement is 
published, both before and after audit. The following Post Balance Sheet Events has been 
identified: 

McCloud/Sargeant ruling - in December 2018, the Court of Appeal upheld a ru ling that 
transitional protections in the Judges' and Firefighters' Pension Schemes were unlawful on 
the grounds of age discrimination. The implications of the ruling are expected to apply to 
the Local Government Pension Scheme (and other public service schemes) as well. 

The UK Government requested leave to appeal to the Supreme Court, but this was denied 
at the end of June 2019. The Authority recognises this denial of leave to appeal as an 
adjusting post balance sheet event and has revised its estimate of its net pension liability 
to provide for the potential obligations arising from this ruling. Further detail on this ru ling 
and how the impact on the Authority's pension liability has been estimated is provided at 
Note 17 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes. 

The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Director of Finance on 30 July 2019. 
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Note 6 - Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis 

2018/19 

Employee Costs 

Depreciation and 
Amortisation 

Other Income 

Net Cost of Services 

Other Income and 
Expenditure 

Difference between the 
Statutory Charge and the 
Surplus or Deficit in the 
Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure 
Statement 

2017/18 

Employee Costs 

Depreciation and 
Amortisation 

Other Income 

Net Cost of Services 

Other Income and 
Expenditure 

Difference between the 
Statutory Charge and the 
Surplus or Deficit in the 
Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure 
Statement 

Net Capital 
Statutory 

Adjustments 

£000 

3,762 

3,762 

3,762 

Net Capital 
Statutory 

Adjustments 

£000 

3,234 

(1,592) 

1,642 

1,642 

Net Pensions Other Statutory Total 
Statutory Adjustments Adjustments 

Adjustments 

£000 £000 £000 

11,414 75 11,489 

3,762 

(1,934) (1,934) 

11,414 {1,859) 13,317 

8,850 (201) 8,649 

20,264 (2,060) 21,966 

Net Pensions Other Statutory Total 
Statutory Adjustments Adjustments 

Adjustments 

£000 £000 £000 

(290) (23) (313) 

3,234 

240 (1,352) 

(290) 217 1,569 

8,121 543 8,664 

7,831 760 10,233 

Adjustments for capita l purposes - this column adds in depreciation and impairment and 
revaluation gains and losses in the services line. 
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Net Change for the Pensions Adjustments - Net change for the removal of pension 
contributions and the addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits pension related expenditure and 
income : 

- For services this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the 
Authority as allowed by statute and the replacement with current service costs and past 
service costs, 

- For Financing and investment income and expenditure - the net interest on t he defined 
benefit liability is charged to the CIES. 

Other Differences - Other differences between amounts debited/credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and amounts payable/receivable to be 
recognised under statute : 

- The charge under Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure represents the 
difference between what is chargeable under statutory regulations for council tax and NNDR 
that was projected to be received at the start of the year and the income recognised under 
generally accepted accounting practices in the Code. This is a timing difference as any 
difference will be brought forward in future Surpluses or Deficits on the Collection Fund. 
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Note 7 - Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under 

Regulations 

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and 
expenditure recognised by the Fire Authority in the year in accordance with proper accounting 
practice to arrive at the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available 
to the Authority to meet future capital and revenue expenditure. The following sets out a 
description of the reserves that the adjustments are made against. 

- General Fund Balance - The General Fund is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of 
an authority are required to be paid and out of which all liabilities of the Authority are to be 
met, except to the extent that statutory rules might provide otherwise. These rules can also 
specify the financial year in which liabilities and payments should impact on the General Fund 
Balance, which is not necessarily in accordance with proper accounting practice. The General 
Fund Balance therefore summarises the resources that the Fire Authority is statutorily 
empowered to spend on its services or on capital investment (or the deficit of resources that 
the Council is required to recover) at the end of the financial year. 

- Capital Receipts Reserve - The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal 
of land or other assets, which are restricted by statute from being used other than to fund new 
capital expenditure or to be set aside to finance historical capital expenditure. The balance on 
the reserve shows the resources that have yet to be applied for these purposes at the year
end. 

- Capital Grants Unapplied - The Capital Grants Unapplied Account (Reserve) holds the grants 
and contributions received towards capital projects for which the Fire Authority has met the 
conditions that would otherwise require repayment of the monies but which have yet to be 
applied to meet expenditure. The balance is restricted by grant terms as to the capital 
expenditure against which it can be applied and/or the financial year in which this can take 
place. 

2018/2019 

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources 

General 
Fund 

Balance 

£000 

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve 

£000 

Capital Movement 
Grants in Unusable 

Unapplied Reserves 
£000 £000 

Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement are different from revenue for the year calculated in accordance with 
statutory requirements: 

Pension cost (transferred to (or from) 
the Pensions Reserve) 
Council tax and NDR (transfers to or 
from the Collection Fund) 
Holiday pay (transferred to the 
Accumulated Absences reserve) 
Reversal of entries included in the 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services in relation to capital 
expenditure (these items are charged 
to the Capital Adjustment Account) 
Total Adjustments to Revenue 
Resources 

(20,264) 

(228) 

(75) 

(4,251) 

(24,818) 

(1) 

(1) 

29 

20,264 

228 

75 

4,251 

24,818 



Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources 

Transfer of non-current asset sale 115 (115) 
proceeds from revenue to the Capital 
Receipts Reserve 
Statutory Provision for the repayment 129 (129) 
of debt (transfer to the Capital 
Adjustment Account) 
Capital expenditure financed from 2,608 (2,608) 
revenue balances (transfer to the 
Capital Adjustment Account) 
Total Adjustments between Revenue 2,852 (115) (2,738) 
and Capital Resources 

Adjustments to Capital Resources 

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to 171 (171) 
finance capital expenditure 
Total Adjustments to Capital Resources 171 ( 171) 

Total Adjustments (21,966} 57 (1) 21,909 

2017/2018 General Capital Capital Movement 
Fund Receipts Grants in Unusable 

Balance Reserve Unapplied Reserves 
£000 £000 £000 £000 

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources 

Amounts by which Income and expenditure included In the Comprehensive I ncome and 
Expenditure Statement are different from revenue for the year calculated in accordance with 
statutory requirements: 

Pension cost (transferred to (or from) (7,831) 7,831 
the Pensions Reserve) 
Counci l tax and N DR (transfers to or 107 (107) 
from the Collection Fund) 
Holiday pay (transferred to the 23 (23) 
Accumulated Absences reserve) 
Reversal of entries included in the (3,896) 3,896 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services in relation to capital 
expenditure (these items are charged 
to the Capital Adjustment Account) 
Total Adjustments to Revenue (11,597) 11,597 
Resources 

Adjustments between Revenue and 
Capital Resources 
Transfer of non-current asset sale 227 (227) 
proceeds from revenue to the Capital 
Receipts Reserve 
Statutory Provision for the repayment 135 (135) 
of debt (t ransfer to the Capital 
Adjustment Account) 
Capital expenditure financed from 1,002 {1,002) 
revenue balances (transfer to the 
Capital AdJustment Account) 
Total Adjustments between Revenue 1,364 (227) (1,137) 
and Capital Resources 

Adjustments to Capital Resources 

Application of capital grants to finance 1,638 (1,638) 
capital expenditure 
Total Adjustments to Capital Resources 1,638 (1,638) 

Total Adjustments (10, 233 ) (227) 1,638 8,822 
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Note 8 - Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves 

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund in earmarked reserves to 
provide financing for future expenditure plans and the amounts posted back from earmarked 
reserves to meet General Fund expenditure. 

Balance at Transfers Transfers Balance at Transfers Transfers 
1 April In 2017/18 Out 31 March In 2018/19 Out 
2017 2017/18 2018 2018/19 

£000 £000 E000 E000 E000 E000 

General Fund 
Reserves: 
Community Safety (200) (200) 
Reserve 
Revenue Pension (824) (824) 
Reserve 
On Call Operations (975) (975) 
Reserve 

Property Development (4,444) (4,444) 
Reserve 
Revenue C/Forwards (3,150) {3,415) 2,975 (3,590) (2,039) 3,563 
Reserve 

Total General Fund (9,593) (3,415) 2,975 (10,033) (2,038) 3,563 

Note 9 - Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 

2017/18 
£000 

141 Interest payable and similar charges 

8,121 Net interest on the net defined benefit 
liability (asset) 

(79) Interest receivable and similar income 

8,183 Total 

2018/19 
£000 

141 

8,850 

(110) 

8,881 

Note 10 - Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 

2017/18 
£000 

(18,441) Council tax income 

(6,267) Non-domestic rates income and 
expenditure 

(4,245) Non-ringfenced government grants 

(28,953) Total 

2018/19 
E000 

(19,163) 

(6,813) 

(3,344) 

(29,319) 

31 

Balance at 
31 March 
2019 

£000 

(200) 

{824) 

(975) 

{4,444} 

{2,066) 

(8,509) 



Note 11 - Property, Plant and Equipment 

Movements to 31 March 2019 

Vehicles, Total 
Land Plant, Property, 

and Furniture & Assets Under Plant and 
Buildings Equipment Construction Equipment 

£000 £000 £000 £000 
Cost or Valuation 

at 1 April 2018 32,893 19,190 974 53,057 

Additions 1,145 1,210 117 2,472 

Revaluation 291 291 
increases/(decreases) recognised 
in the Revaluation Reserve 
Revaluation (1,297) (1,297) 
increases/( decreases) recognised 
in the Surplus/Deficit on the 
Provision of Services 
Derecognition - disposals (325) (2,063) (2,388) 

Reclassifications and transfer 109 865 (974) 

at 31 March 2019 32,816 19,202 117 52,135 

Accumulated Depreciation and 
Impairment 

at 1 April 2018 (46) (10,405) (10,451) 

Depreciation charge (599) (1,922) (2,521) 

Depreciation written out to the 240 240 
Revaluation Reserve 
Impairment losses/(reversals) 260 260 
recognised in the Revaluation 
Reserve 
Impairment losses/(reversals) 145 145 
recognised in the Surplus/Deficit 
on the Provision of Services 
Derecognition - disposals 1,900 1,900 

at 31 March 2019 {10,427) (10,427) 

Net Book Value 

at 31 March 2019 32,816 8,775 117 41,708 

at 31 March 2018 32,847 8,785 974 42,606 
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Movements to 31 March 2018 

Vehicles, Total 
Land Plant, Property, 
and Furniture & Assets Under Plant and 

Buildings Equipment Constn.1ci:ion Equipment 

£000 £000 £000 £000 
Cost or Valuation 

at 1 April 2017 31,311 18,806 517 50,634 

Addit ions 345 1,427 956 2,728 

Revaluation 1,295 1,295 
increases/(decreases) recognised 
in the Revaluation Reserve 
Derecognit ion - disposals (83) ( 1,500) (17) (1,600) 

Reclassifications and transfer 25 457 (482) 

at 31 March 2018 32,893 19,190 974 53,057 

Accumulated Depreciation and 
Impairment 

at 1 April 2017 (224) (9,645) (9,869) 

Depreciation charge (667) (1,859) (2,526} 

Depreciation written out to the 835 835 
Revaluation Reserve 
Depreciation written out to the (631) (631} 
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of 
Services 
Impairment losses/(reversals) 637 637 
recognised in the Revaluation 
Reserve 
Derecognition - disposals 4 1,099 1,103 

at 31 March 2018 (46} (10,405} (10,451) 

Net Book Value 

at 31 March 2018 32,847 8,785 974 42,606 

at 31 March 2017 31,087 9,161 517 40,765 
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Property, Plant and Equipment Revaluations 

Vehicles, Plant, 
Other Land and Furniture and 

Buildings Equipment Total 

£000 £000 £000 

Carried at historical cost 8,775 8,775 

Valued at current value as at: 

31/ 03/2019 32,816 32,816 

Total Cost or Valuation 32,816 8,775 41,591 

Valuations of all the Authority's property was carried out by the Appointed Valuer, Wilks, Head 
and Eve, by a Surveyor with a RICS qualification with an effective revaluation dat e of 31 March 
2019. 

The Valuer's general assumptions in regard to costs are that our valuations have been provided 
in gross form and do not include an allowance for purchaser's costs at the appropriate rate. 
The Valuer would expect purchaser's cost to be in the region of 0.5% and 5.0% dependant on 
the overal l value of the asset and property type. The Valuer has made no allowance for any 
vendor's costs or taxation (actual or notional) nor has any allowance been made for any capital 
or annual grants or incentives to which a purchaser may be entitled . The Valuer has not been 
asked by the Fire Authority to specifically reflect these costs separately . 
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Note 12 - Intangible Assets 

The Fire Authority accounts for its software as intangible assets, to the extent that the software 
is not an integral part of a particular IT system and accounted for as part of the hardware item 
of property, plant and equipment. The intangible assets include both purchased licenses and 
internally generally software. Al l software is given a finite useful life, based on assessments 
of the period that the software is expected to be of use to the Authority. The useful lives 
assigned to the major software suites used by the Authority are: 

31st 
March 
2018 

Total 

£000 

Balance at start of year: 

2,905 Gross carrying amounts 

(2,624) Accumulated amortisation 

31st 
March 
2019 

Total 

£000 

2,509 

(2,305) 

281 Net carrying amount at start of year 204 

Additions: 

165 Purchases 

(561) Other disposals 

(77) Amortisation for the period 

396 Amortisation written off on disposal 

204 Net carrying amount at end of year 

Comprising: 

2,509 Gross carrying amounts 

(2,305) Accumulated amortisation 

204Total 

107 

(783) 

(94) 

783 

217 

1,833 

(1,616) 

217 
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Note 13 - Financial Instruments 

Current Financial Assets 

Investments Debtors Cash Total 

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 
2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2019 
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Pre IFRS 9 
Categories 
Loans and receivables 11,248 4,688 

Other 107 

IFRS 9 Categories 

Amortised cost 10,257 443 3,370 14,070 

Total financial assets 11,248 10,257 107 443 4,688 3,370 14,070 

Non-Current Financial Liabilities 

Borrowings Creditors Total 

( 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 
2018 2019 2018 2019 2019 
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Amortised cost (3,200) (3,200) (639) (638) (3 ,838) 

Total financial liabilities {3,200) {3,200) {639) (638) {3,838) 

Current Financial Liabilities 

Borrowings Creditors Total 
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 

2018 2019 2018 2019 2019 
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Amortised cost (16) (16) (2,345) (2,409) (2,425) 

Total financial liabilities {16) (16) {2,345) (2,409) {2,425) 
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Note 14 - Financial Instruments - Fair Value 

Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities 

Financial assets and liabilities are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost. Their fair 
value can be assessed by calculating the present value of the cash flows that wil l take place 
over the remaining term of the instruments, using the following assumptions: 

- For loans from the PWLB and other loans payable, new loan rates from the market have been 
applied to provide the fair va lue under PWLB debt redemption procedures 

- For loans receivable prevai ling benchmark market rates have been used to provide the fair 
value 

- No early repayment or impairment is recognised 

- Where an instrument wil l mature in the next 12 months or is a trade or other receivable, the 
fair value is taken to be the carrying amount or the billed amount 

- The fa ir va lue of trade and other payables is taken to be the invoiced or bil led amount. 

The valuation basis adopted in calculating fair va lue uses level 2 inputs - i.e. inputs other than 
quoted prices that are observable for f inancial assets and financial liabilities. There has been 
no change to the valuation techniques applied in previous years. 

The Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities that are not 
Measured at Fair Value (but for which Fair Value Disclosures are required) 

Financial Liabilities 

Financial Liabilities held at Amortised 
Cost 
Total 

31 March 2018 

Carrying 
Amount Fair Value 

£000 £000 

(3,200) (4,688) 

{3,200) (4,688) 

31 March 2019 

Carrying 
Amount Fair Value 

£000 £000 

(3,200) (4,777) 

(3,200) (4,777) 

The value of the liabilities is greater than the carry amount because the Authority's portfolio 
of loans includes a number of fixed rate loans where the interest rate payable is higher than 
the prevai ling rates at the Balance Sheet date. Due to the short term repayment periods of 
the Authority's Assets the difference between the carrying value (in Note 13) and the fair 
value is immaterial. 
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Note 15 - Debtors 

31 March 
2018 
£000 

94 

901 

2,604 

3,599 

Trade Receivables 

Prepayments 

Other Receivable Amounts 

Total 

Note 16 - Cash and Cash Equivalents 

31 March 
2018 

£000 

22 Cash and Bank balances 

4,666 Short Term Deposits 

4,688 Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Note 17 - Creditors 

31 March 2018 
£000 

(19) Trade payables 

(2,833) Other payables 

(2,852) Total Creditors 

31 March 
2019 
£000 

431 

477 

3,594 

4,502 

31 March 
2019 
£000 

17 

3,353 

3,370 

31 March 
2019 
£000 

(42) 

(2,879) 

(2,921} 
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Note 18 - Usable Reserves 

Movements in the Authority's usable reserves are detailed in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement 

Capital Receipts Reserve 

31 March 
2018 

£000 

(1,206) Balance 1 April 

( 227) Capital Receipts in year 

0 Capital Receipts used for financing 

{1,433) Balance 31 March 

Capital Grants Unapplied 

31 March 
2018 

£000 

(4,224) Balance 1 April 

- Capital grants recognised in year 

1,638 Capital grants and contributions 
applied 

(2,586) Balance 31 March 

Note 19 - Unusable Reserves 

31 March 
2018 

£000 

(14,321) Revaluation Reserve 

(24,504) Capital Adjustment Account 

321,969 Pension Reserve 

(228) Collection Fund Adjustment Account 

307 Accumulated Absences Account 

283,223 Total 

31 March 
2019 

£000 

(1,433) 

(115) 

171 

{1,377) 

31 March 
2019 

£000 

(2,586) 

(1) 

(2,587) 

31 March 
2019 

£000 

(14,771) 

(23,469) 

339,669 

382 

301,811 
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Revaluation Reserve 
31 March 

2018 
£000 

(11,768) Balance 1 April 

(2,766) Upward revaluat ion of assets 

(1) Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not 
charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 

(2,767) Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non- current assets not 
charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services 

184 Difference between fair value depreciat ion and historical cost 
depreciation 

30 Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped 

214 Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account 

Ot her movements to Other Comprehensive I ncome and 
Expenditure 

(14,321) Balance 31 March 

Capital Adjustment Account 
31 March 

2018 
£000 

(25,411) Balance 1 April 

2,526 Charges for depreciat ion and impairment of non-current assets 

631 Revaluation losses on non-current assets 

77 Amortisat ion of intangible assets 

662 Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as 
part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement 

3,896 Reversal of Items relating to capital expenditure debited or 
credited to the Comprehensive I ncome and Expenditure 
Statement 

(214) Adjust ing Amounts written out of the Revaluat ion Reserve 

3,682 Net written out amount of the cost of non- current assets 
consumed in the year 
Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital 
expend iture 

(1,638) Capital Grants and Contributions credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expend it ure Statement that have been applied to 
capital financing 

(135) Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment 
charged aga inst the General Fund 

(1,002) Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund and HRA 
balances 

(2,775) Capital financing applied in year: 

(24,504) Balance 31 March 

40 

31 March 
2019 
£000 

(14,321) 

(787) 

(787) 

117 

191 

307 

29 

(14,771) 

31 March 
2019 
£000 

(24,504) 

2,375 

1,297 

94 

488 

4,254 

(311) 

3,943 

(171) 

(129) 

(2,608) 

(2,908) 

(23,469) 



Pension Reserve 
31 March 

2018 
£000 

313,675 Balance 1 April 

463 Remeasurements of the net defined benefit (liability)/asset 

15,498 Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or 
credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

(7,667) Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to 
pensioners payable in the year 

321,969 Balance 31 March 

Note 20 - Cash Flow from Operating Activities 

The cash flows for operating activities include the following items: 
31 March 

2018 
£000 

(112) 

141 

29 

Interest received 

Interest paid 

Total 

31 March 
2019 
£000 

321,969 

(2,564) 

28,428 

(8,164) 

339,669 

31 March 
2019 
£000 

(126) 

141 

15 

The surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the following non-cash 
movements: 

31 March 31 March 
2018 2019 
£000 £000 

(2,526) Depreciation (2,555) 

(631) Impairment and downward valuations (1,114) 

(77) Amortisation (94) 

(298) (Increase)/decrease in creditors (69) 

515 Increase/(decrease) in debtors 904 

(8) Increase/(decrease) in inventories 5 

(7,831) Movement in pension liability (20,264) 

(662) Carrying amount of non-current assets and non-current (488) 
assets held for sale, sold or derecognised 

(35) Other non-cash movements charged to the surplus or deficit (43) 
on provision of services 

(11,552) Total (23,718) 

The surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the fol lowing items which 
are investing and financing activities: 

31 March 
2018 
£000 

227 

227 

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 
investment property and intangible assets 

Total 

41 

31 March 
2019 
£000 

115 

115 



Note 21 - Cash Flow from Investing Activities 
31 March 

2018 
£000 

2,893 

19,229 

(227) 

(20,230) 

1,665 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment 
property and intangible assets 

Purchase of short-term and long-term investments 

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 
investment property and intangible assets 

Proceeds from short-term and long- term investments 

Net cash flows from investing activities 

Note 22 - Members' Allowances 

31 March 
2018 
£000 

44 

33 

2 

79 

Salaries 

Allowances 

Expenses 

Total Members' Allowances 

Note 23 - Officers' Remuneration 

31 March 
2019 
£000 

2,580 

21,230 

(115) 

(22,230) 

1,465 

31 March 
2019 
£000 

39 

35 

2 

76 

The Other Payments column reflects Bonuses paid and the Expenses Allowances column 
reflects Benefits in Kind (e.g. Car Allowance). 

Senior Officer Remuneration 

Salary, Fees 
and Allowances 

2018/19 
£ 

Chief Fire Officer - C 2018/19 145,670 
Strickland 2017/18 142,814 

Assistant Chief Fire Officer 2018/19 119,052 
- R Hylton 2017/18 116,720 

Deputy Chief Executive & 2018/19 127,203 
Treasurer to the Fire 2017/18 125,112 
Authority - M Warren 
Total 2018/19 391,925 

2017/18 384,646 

Expenses 
Allowances 

£ 

65 

51 

65 
51 

9,758 

8,534 

9,888 
8,636 

Pension 
Contribution 

£ 

17,024 

16,690 

23,623 

23,077 

40,647 
39,767 

Total 

£ 

145,735 
142,865 

136,141 
133,461 

160,584 
156,723 

442,460 
433,049 

For 2018/19 part of the Treasurer's total remuneration, amounting to £15.2k, was recharged 
to the Cambridgeshire Police & Crime Commissioner for work on their behalf. 
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Officer Remuneration 

Number of Employees 

£50,001 to £55,000 

£55,001 to £60,000 

£60,001 to £65,000 

£65,001 to £70,000 

£70,001 to £75,000 

£75,001 to £80,000 
£80,001 to £85,000 

£85,001 to £90,000 

Total 

Exit Packages 

2017/18 
27 

8 

2 

5 

1 

2 

45 

Number of 

2018/19 
16 

20 

6 

2 

2 

1 

47 

Number of other Exit package cost 
band (including 
special payments) 

compulsory 
redundancies departures agreed 

2017/18 2018/19 2017/18 2018/19 
£0-£20,000 

Total 

Note 24 - External Audit Costs 

2017/18 

£000 

2 

2 

32 Fees payable to external auditors with regard 
to external audit services carried out by the 
appointed auditor for the year 

32 Total 

Note 25 - Grant Income 

2 

2 

Total number of exit 
packages by cost 

band 

2017/18 2018/19 
2 

2 

2018/19 

£000 
27 

27 

2 

2 

Grant Income Credited to Taxation and non
specific Grant Income and Expenditure 

31 March 
2018 
£000 

(3,803) 

(152) 

Revenue Support Grant 

New Burdens Grant 

(77) ESMCP Grant 

(77) Transition Grant 

(136) Other Minor Grants 

(4,245) Total 

43 

31 March 
2019 
£000 

(3,140) 

(190) 

(14) 

(3,344) 

Total cost of exit packages 
In each band(£) 

2017/18 2018/19 
22,147 12,420 

22,147 12,420 



Note 26 - Related Parties 

The Fire Authority is required to disclose material transactions with related parties - bodies or 
individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Fire Authority or to be controlled 
or influenced by the Fire Authority. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess 
the extent to which the Fire Authority might have been constrained in its ability to operate 
independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party's ability to bargain freely 
with the Fire Authority. 

During the year Deputy Chief executive held the position of Chief Financial Officer (CFO) for 
the Police and Crime Commissioner. Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Fire Authority received 
£ 15k during the year in relation to Local Resilience contributions, rental income and the 
recharge for the CFO. The year end debtor balance as at 31/03/19 was fSk. 

Central Government 

Central government has effective control over the general operations of the Fire Authority - it 
is responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the Fire Authority operates, 
provides the majority of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of 
the transactions that the Fire Authority has with other parties (e.g. Council Tax bills). Grants 
receipts outstanding at 31 March 2019 are included in Note 17. 

Members 

Members of the Fire Authority have direct control over the Fire Authority's financial and 
operating policies. The total of member's allowances paid in 2018/19 is shown in note 26. 
Contracts were entered into in full compliance with the Fire Authority's standing orders. We 
have consulted with all members of the Fire Authority with regard to Related Party Transactions 
for 2018/19 and there are no material transactions to disclose, (Nil in 2017/18). The Fire 
Authority has 17 elected members of which 13 are Cambridgeshire County Councillors and 4 
are Peterborough City Councillors. 

Officers 

We have consulted with all Senior Managers of the Fire Authority with regard to Related Party 
Transactions for 2018/19 and there are no material transactions to disclose, (Nil in 2017/18). 
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Note 27 - Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing 

Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing 

31 March 2018 
£000 

2,983 Opening Capital Financing Requirement 

Capital Investment: 

2,728 Property Plant and Equipment 

165 Intangible Assets 

2,893 Total Capital Spending 

Sources of Finance: 

- Capital receipts 

(1,638) Government Grants and other contributions 

Sums set aside from revenue: 

(1,002) - Direct revenue contributions 

(135) - Minimum revenue provision 

{2,775) Total Sources of Finance 

3,101 Closing Capital Financing Requirement 

Explanation of movements in year 

31 March 2018 
£000 

118 Increase in underlying need to borrow 
(unsupported by government financial assistance) 

118 Increase/{decrease) in Capital Financing 
Requirement 

45 

31 March 2019 
£000 

3,101 

2,472 

107 

2,579 

(171) 

(2,608) 

(129) 

{2,908) 

2,772 

31 March 2019 
£000 

(329) 

{329) 



Note 28 - Leases 

Parkside Fire Station 

The Fire Authority retains the freehold of the land at Parkside, Cambridge. However the 
Authority leased out this land to allow for the development of 99 residential units, a commercial 
unit and a fire station. 

On completion of the development the fi re station was leased back to the Fire Authority in July 
2013 for 999 years on a peppercorn rent. 

Authority as Lessee - Finance Leases 

The assets acquired under these leases are carried as 
Property, Plant and Equipment in the Balance Sheet at 
the following net amounts: 

31 March 
2018 

£000 

6,738 Other Land and Buildings 

6,738 Total 

31 March 
2019 

£000 

7,011 

7,011 
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Note 29 - Defined Benefit Pension Scheme 
As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers and other employees, the Fire Authority 
makes contributions towards the cost of post employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually 
be payable until employees retire, the Fire Authority has a commitment to make the payments that need 
to be disclosed at the t ime that employees earn their future entitlement. 

The Fire Authority participates in five post employment schemes: 

The Local Government Pension Scheme for non-uniformed and control room employees, administered by 
Cambridgeshire County Council. This is a funded defined benefit final sa lary scheme, meaning that the Fire 
Authority and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the 
pension's liabilities with investment assets. 

There are four Firefighters' Pension schemes for uniformed employees. These are unfunded defined benefit 
schemes. The Firefighters' pension schemes have no assets. The total contributions, by both current 
members and the Fire Authority, are used to fund payments to the current pensioners regardless of which 
scheme they are in. A separate account detail ing the 2018/19 transactions and liabilities is shown within 
the Firefighters' Pension Fund Account note. 

The Local Government pension scheme is operated under the regulatory framework for the Local 
Government Pension Scheme and the governance of the scheme is the responsibility of the pensions 
committee of Cambridgeshire County Council. Policy is determined in accordance with the Pensions Fund 
Regulations. 

The principal risks to the Authority of the scheme are the longevity assumptions, statutory changes to the 
scheme, structural changes to the scheme (i.e. large-scale withdrawals from the scheme), changes to 
inflation, bond yields and the performance of the equity investments held by the scheme. These are 
mitigated to a certain extent by the statutory requirements to charge to the General Fund the amounts 
required by statute as described in the accounting policies note. 

The operation of the Firefighters' Pension Schemes is controlled by t he Firefighters Pension Scheme 
(Amendment)(England) Order 2006 (SI 2006/1810) and The Firefighters' Pension Scheme (England) 
Regulations 2014. Employees' and employers' contributions into the Firefighter Pension Fund are 
determined by the Secretary of State on the advice of the Government Actuary. Payments of pensions and 
other retirement benefits are made from the Pension Fund. Government grant is payable to cover any 
shortfa ll on the Pension Fund account. 

The principal risks to the Fire Authority are statutory change to the scheme and the number of ill health 
retirements and injury awards. The Authority contributes at the rate prescribed by the Fund's actuary. 

The actuarial va lue of the fund's liabilities as at 31 March 2019, in accordance with International Accounting 
Standard (IAS) 19, was completed by the Government's Actuary Department on 31 March 2019, and subject 
to triennial valuation. 

Transactions relating to ret irement benefits 

We recognise the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are earned by 
employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge we are 
required to make against council tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post 
employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. 

The Employer contributions figure includes the rel ief from MHCLG (Top-up Grant). The total contributions 
expected to be made to the Local Government Pension Scheme by the Authority in the year to 31 March 
2020 will be £1,351k. Expected contributions to the Firefighters' Pension Scheme in the year to 31 March 
2020 are £3,026k. 
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General Fund Transactions 

2017/18 

Firefighters 
Firefighters Injury 

LGPS Main Scheme Pensions 

£000 £000 £000 

Total 

£000 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
Cost of Services 

1,877 

321 

2,198 

4,900 

7,100 

12,000 

600 

700 

1,300 

Service cost com prising : 
7,377 Current service cost 

- Past service cost 
Financing and I nvestment Income and 
Expenditure 

8,121 Net interest expense 

15,498 Total charged to Surplus and 
Deficit on Provision of Services 

2018/ 19 

Firefighters 
Firefighters Injury 

LGPS Main Scheme Pensions 

£000 

2,000 

178 

350 

2,528 

£000 

5,200 

11,500 

7,800 

24,500 

£000 

700 

700 

1,400 

Other post-employment benefits charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Re-measurement of the net defined 
benefit liability comprising: 

571 571 Return on plan assets (excluding the (1,328) 
amount included in the net interest 
expense) 

8 31 ,000 (22,000) 9,008 Actuarial gains and losses - 6 (6,900) 900 
experience 

( 11,000) 7,800 (3,200) Actuarial gains and losses arising on (25,900) 3,100 
changes in demographic assumptions 

(1 ,016) (15,900) 12,000 (5,916) Actuarial gains and losses arising on 4,558 26,200 (3,200) 
changes in f inancial assumptions 

(437) 3,100 (2,200) 463 Total charged to Other 3,236 (6,600} 800 
Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 

1,761 15,100 (900) 15,961 Total charged to the 5 ,764 17,900 2,200 
Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 
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Total 

£000 

7,900 

11,678 

8,850 

28,428 

£000 

(1,328) 

(5,994) 

(22,800) 

27,558 

( 2,564} 

25,864 



2017/18 2018/19 
Firefighters Firefighters 

Firefighters Injury Firefighters Injury 
LGPS Main Scheme Pensions Total LGPS Main Scheme Pensions Total 

Movement in Reserves Statement 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
(2,198) (12,000) (1,300) (15,498) Reversal of net charges made to the 

Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
(2,528) (24,500) (1,400) (28,428) 

Services 

Actual amount charged against the 
general fund balance for pensions in 
the year: 

1,267 5,800 600 7,667 Employers' contributions payable to 1,364 6,200 600 8,164 
scheme 

2017/18 Pensions Assets and 
2018/ 19 Liabilities Recognised in the 

Firefighters Balance Sheet Firefighters 
Firefighters Injury Firefighters Injury 

LGPS Main Scheme Pensions Total LGPS Main Scheme Pensions Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
(46,442) (283,100) (26,300) (355,842 ) Present value of the defined (53,861) (294,800) (27,900) (376,561) 

obligation 

33,873 33,873 Fair value of plan assets 36,892 36,892 

(12,569) (283,100) (26,300) {321,969) Net (liability) / asset arising 
from the defined benefit 

(16,969) (294,800) (27,900) (339,669) 

obligation 
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2017/18 
Movement in the Value of 2018/ 19 
Scheme Assets 

Firefighters Firefighters 
Firefighters Injury Firefighte rs Injury 

LGPS Main Scheme Pensions Total LGPS Main Scheme Pensions Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

32,767 32,767 Opening fair value of scheme 33,873 33,873 
assets 

862 862 Interest income 924 924 

Re-measurement gain / (loss): 

(571) (571) - The return on plan assets, 1,328 1,328 
excluding the amount included 
in the net interest expense 

1,267 5,800 600 7,667 Contributions from employer 1,364 6,200 600 8,164 

324 1,200 1,524 Contributions from employees 351 1,400 1,751 
into the scheme 

(776) (7,000) (600) (8,376) Benefits/ transfers paid (948) (7,600) (600) (9,148) 

33,873 33,873 Closing value of scheme 36,892 36,892 
assets 
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2017/18 Movements in the Fair Value 
2018/19 of Scheme Liabilities 

Firefighters Firefighters 
Firefighters Injury Firefighters Injury 

LGPS Main Scheme Pensions Total LGPS Main Scheme Pensions Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
(44,842) (273,800) (27,800) (346,442) Opening balance at 1 April (46,442) (283,100) (26,300) (355,842) 

(1,877) (4,900) (600) (7,377) Current serv ice cost (2,000) (5,200) (700) (7,900) 

(1,183) (7,100) (700) (8,983) Interest cost (1,274) (7,800) (700) (9,774) 

(324) (1,200) (1,524) Contributions from scheme (351) (1,400) (1,751) 
participants 

Re-measurement gains and 
losses: 

(8) (31,000) 22,000 (9,008) - Actuarial gains/ ( losses) -
experience 

(6) 6,900 (900) 5 ,994 

11,000 (7,800) 3,200 - Actuarial gains/ ( losses) from 
changes 1n demographic 

25,900 (3,100) 22,800 

assumptions 

1 ,016 16,900 (12,000) 5,916 - Actuarial gains/ ( losses) from 
changes in financial assumptions 

(4,558) (26,200) 3,200 (27,558) 

- Past service cost (178) (11,500) (1 1,678) 

776 7,000 600 8,376 Benefits/ t ransfers paid 948 7,600 600 9,148 

(46,442) (283,100) (26,300) (355,842) Balance as at 31 March (53,861) (294,800) (27,900) (376,561) 
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LGPS - Pension Scheme - Assets comprised of: 
Fair value of scheme assets 

2017/ 18 2018/ 19 

Quoted Unquoted Total Quoted Unquoted Total 

£000 £000 £ 000 £000 £000 £000 

927 11 938 Cash and cash equivalents 457 457 

Equity Instruments 
By Indust ry Type 

925 925 Consumer 1,115 1,1 15 

625 625 Manufacturing 664 664 

7 10 710 Energy and Utilit ies 775 775 

1,545 1 ,545 Financial Institutions 1,387 1,387 

349 349 Health and Care 223 223 

180 180 Information Technology 196 196 

2,981 2,981 Private Equity 2,792 2,792 

19,203 19,203 Investment Funds & Unit Trusts 20,667 20,667 

4 ,334 22, 184 2 6,518 Subtotal Equity Instruments 4 , 360 23,459 27,819 

Bonds 
By Sector 

3,304 3,304 I nvestment Funds & Unit Trusts 3,428 3,428 

838 838 UK Government 915 915 

2,275 2,275 Other 2,737 2,737 

6,417 6 , 417 Subtotal Bonds 7,080 7,080 

Investment Funds & Unit 
Trusts 
Infrastructure 1,536 1,536 

- Subtotal Investment Funds 1, 536 1, 536 
and Unit Trust s 

5 , 261 28,612 33,87 3 Total Assets 4,8 17 32, 0 7 5 36,892 
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2017/18 

Long term expected rate of return on assets 

2. 7% Equity Instruments 
2.7% Bonds 

Mortality assumptions 

Longevity at retirement for current pensioners 

22.4 Men 
24.4 Women 

Longevity at reti rement for future pensioners 

24.0 Men 
26.3 Women 

Other assumptions 

2.4% Rate of inflation 

LGPS 

2.7% Rate of increase ln salaries 

2.4% Rate of increase in pensions 

2. 7% Rate for discount ing scheme liabilities 

Impact of assumptions on the obligation: 

Increase Decrease 
by1% LGPS by 1% 

£000 Assumption £000 

1,608 Rate of increase in salaries (1,608) 

10,918 Rate of increase in pensions (10,918) 

12,720 Rate for discounting scheme 
liabilities 

(12,720) 

2018/19 

2.4% 
2.4% 

22.4 
24.4 

24.0 
26.3 

2.5% 
2.8% 

2.5% 

2.4% 
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The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been: 

2017/ 18 Firefighters Main Scheme 
Mortality assumptions 

Longev ity at retirement for current pensioners 

29.5 Men 

31.5 Women 

Longevity at retirement for future pensioners 

30.8 Men 

32.8 Women 

Other assumptions 

2.4% Rate of inflation 

3.4% Rate of increase in salaries 

2.4% Rate of increase in pensions 

2.7% Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 

Impact of assumptions on the obligation: 

Increase Decrease 
by 1% by 1% 

Firefighters Main Scheme 

£000 Assumption £000 

9,678 Longevity (9,678) 

7,532 Rate of increase in salaries (7,532) 

48,900 Rate of increase in pensions (48,900) 

62,172 Rate for discounting scheme (62,172) 
liabilities 

2018/19 

27.3 

29.4 

28.4 

30.6 

2.5% 

3.5% 

2.5% 

2.4% 

The t able above shows the amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Authority's obligation in respect of its defined benefit 

plans. 
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Note 30 - Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financia l Instruments 

Disclosure of Nature and Extent of Risk Arising From Financial Instruments 
All monies within these institutions are currently subject to the respective administration and 
pol icy. 

Key Risks 

The Fire Authority's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The key r isks are: 
• Credit risk - the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Authority. 
• Liquidity risk - the possibility that the Authority might not have funds available to meet its 

commitments to make payments. 
• Re-financing risk - the possibility that the Authority might be required t o renew a financia l 

instrument on maturity at disadvantageous interest rates or terms. 
• Interest rate risk - the possibility that the Authority could pay higher costs on variable rate 

debt. 
• Price risk - the possibility that the Authority could lose money on its investments. 

Overall Procedures for Managing Risk 

The Fire Authority's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of 
financial markets and seeks to minimise potent ial adverse effects on the resources available to 
fund services. Risk management is carried out by the finance team, under policies approved by 
the Fire Authority in the annual treasury management statement. The Fire Authority provides 
written principles for overall r isk management, as wel l as written policies covering specific areas, 
such as interest rate risk, credit r isk and the investment of surplus cash. 

Credit risk 

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures 
to the Authorit y's customers. 

This risk is minimised through the annual t reasury management statement, which requires that 
deposits are not made with banks and financial institutions unless they meet minimum credit 
criteria of A, as laid down by Moody, Fitch, Standard & Poor's Rating Services and Credit Default 
Spread data provided by Link Asset Services. The Fire Authority has a policy of not invest ing more 
than £4m with any one group of instit utes unless it is UK Government backed where it is capped 
at £Sm. 

The Fire Authority's maximum exposure to credit r isk in relation to its investments in banks and 
building societies of £13,580k cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any instit ution failing 
to make interest payments or repay the principal sum wil l be specific to each individual institution . 
Recent experience has shown that it is rare for such entit ies to be unable to meet t heir 
commitments. A risk of recoverability applies to all of the Fire Authority's deposits, but there was 
no evidence at the 31 March 2019 that this was likely to crystallise. 

No credit l imits were exceeded during the reporting period and the Fire Authority does not expect 
any losses from non-performance by any of its counterparties in relation to deposits. 
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Liquidity Risk 

The Authority has a comprehensive cash flow management system that seeks to ensure that cash 
is available as needed. If unexpected movements happen, the Fire Authority has ready access to 
borrowings from the money markets and the Public Works Loans Board. There is no significant 
risk that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments. 
Instead, the risk is that the Fire Authority will be bound to replenish a significant proportion of its 
borrowings at a time of unfavourable interest rates. The Fire Authority sets limits on the proportion 
of its fixed rate borrowing during specified periods. The strategy is to ensure budget certainty 
through the use of long term funding secured at low rates of interest. The maturity analysis of 
financia l liabilities is shown in the Liquidity Risk table below. 

Liquidity Risk 

More Than 10 years 

Market Risk 

31 March 
2018 

£000 
3 ,200 

3,200 

31 March 
2019 
£000 

3,200 

3 ,200 

Interest rate risk - The Authority is exposed to interest rate movements on its borrowings and 
investments. Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the Authority, depending on 
how variable and fixed interest rates move across differing financial instrument periods. For 
instance, a rise in variable and fixed interest rates would have the fol lowing effects: 

• Borrowings at variable rates - the interest expense charged to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement wil l rise 

• Borrowings at fixed rates - the fair value of the borrowing will fall (no impact on revenue 
balances) 

• Investments at variable rates - the interest income credited to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement will rise; and 

• Investments at fixed rates - the fair value of the assets wi ll fal l (no impact on revenue 
balances) . 

Borrowings are not carried at fair value on the balance sheet, so nominal gains and losses on fixed 
rate borrowings would not impact on the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services or Other 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. However, changes in interest payable and receivable on 
variable rate borrowings and investments w ill be posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision 
of Services and affect the General Fund Balance, subject to influences from Government grants. 
Movements in the fair value of fixed rate investments that have a quoted market price will be 
reflect ed in the Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

The Fire Authority has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. The Annual Treasury 
Management Strategy draws together the Authority's prudential and treasury indicators and its 
expected treasury operations, including an expectation of interest rate movements. From this 
Strategy a treasury indicator is set which provides maximum limits for fixed and variable interest 
rate exposure. The central treasury t eam will monitor market and forecast interest rates with in 
the year to adjust exposures appropriately. For instance during periods of falling interest rates, 
and where economic circumstances make it favourable, fixed rate investments may be taken for 
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longer periods to secure better long term returns, similarly the drawing of longer term fixed rates 
borrowing would be postponed. 

The finance team has an active strategy for assessing interest rate exposure that feeds into the 
setting of the annual budget and which is used to update the budget quarterly during the year. 
This al lows any adverse changes to be accommodated. The analysis will also advise whether new 
borrowing taken out is fixed or variable. 

Sensitivity Analysis 

According to this assessment strategy, at 31 March 2019, if interest rates had been 
with al l other variables held constant, the financial effect would be: 

Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments 
Increase in government grant receivable for financing costs 
Impact on Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 
Decrease in fair value of fixed rate investment assets 
Impact on Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

£0005 
115 

58 
173 

(109) 
(109) 

1% higher 

Decrease in fair value of fixed rate borrowings liabilities (no impact on the Surplus or Deficit on 
the provision of Services or Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure). The impact of a 1 % 
fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being reversed. 1 % is not the 
Fire Authority's estimate of probable variation, it is used as an example to al low readers to easily 
work out comparisons using their own estimates. 
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Fire Fighters Pension Fund Account 
Cambridgeshire And Peterborough Fire Authority 

This account shows the contributions made to and payments from the Firefighters' Pension Schemes. 
The schemes are unfunded and consequently since the scheme has no investment assets, the difference 
between the contributions and payments is now fully financed by the Home Office. The net effect on the 
Fire Authority will always be nil. 

The fund's financial statements do not take into account any liabilities to pay pension and other benefits 
after the period end. 

2017/18 2018/19 

£000's 

Contributions Receivable 
(1,597) Employers 

(127) Ill-health retirements 
(1,325) Employees 
(3,049) 

- Transfers in from other schemes 

Benefits Payable 
6,340 Pensions 

713 Commutation of pension and lump sum retirement benefits 

- Transfers out to other schemes 

Deficit/Surplus for the year before top up grant receivable/amount 
4,004 payable from/to sponsoring department 

Top up grant receivable/amount payable from/to sponsoring 
(4,004) department 

- Net amount payable/receivable for the year ----

58 

£000's 

(1 ,629) 
(45) 

(1,402) 
(3,076) 

( 1) 

6,648 
1,693 

405 

5,669 

(5,669) 



Notes to the Fire Fighters Pension Fund Account 

Note F1 

Firefighters Pension Fund Statement Notes 

• The fund was established under the Firefighters' Pensions Scheme (Amendment) (England) 
Order 2006. The scheme is an unfunded scheme and has no investment assets. The fund 
pays all Firefighters' retirement benefits with the exception of injury awards which are paid 
from the Fire Authority's account and included in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement on page 12. 

• The fund displays the contributions receivable and the benefits paid out in respect of 
pensions and leavers. As there are no investment assets held within the fund the difference 
between the income, from employee and employer contributions, and expenditure is met by 
a contribution from/ to the Department of Communities and Local Government, thus the 
fund is balanced to nil each year. The fund is administered by the LGSS (Local Government 
Shared Service} Pensions Section of Cambridgeshire County Council and managed by 
Cambridgeshire & Peterborough Fire Authority. 

• The accounting policies followed are as stated in the Accounting Policies on page 15. The 
Pension Fund Account only relates to the liabilities incurred during the 2018/19 financial 
year. All future liabilities are accounted for on an IAS 19 basis and are included within the 
core financial statements. 

• The employees' and employer's contributions are based on percentages of pensionable pay 
set nationally by the MHCLG and subject to triennial revaluation by the Government 
Actuary's Department. 

Note F2 
Net Assets Statement 

2017/18 

771 

(771) 

Top-up grant due from/refundable to(-) the Government 

Amount due to(-)/from General Fund 

Long Term Assets 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CAMBRIDGESHIRE AND 
PETERBOROUGH FIRE AUTHORITY 

Opinion on the financial statements 

We have audited the financial statements of Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Fire 
Authority (°the Authority'') for the year ended 31 March 2019 which comprise the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Movement in Reserves Statement, 
the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and related numbered notes and the 
Expenditure and Funding Analysis note to the financial statement, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies, and the Fire Fighters Pension Fund Account and notes. The 
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law 
and the Cf PFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom 2018/19. 

In our opinion the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the financial position of Cambridgeshire and Peterborough 
Fire Authority as at 31 March 2019 and of its expenditure and income for the year then 
ended; and 

• have been prepared properly in accordance with applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC 
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/ 19; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014. 

Basis for opinion on the financial statements 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (lSAs 
(UK)), the Code of Audit Practice issued by the National Audit Office in April 2015 ("Code of 
Audit Practice") and applicable law. Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further 
described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements sect ion 
of our report. We are independent of the Authority in accordance with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including 
the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs 
(UK) requi re us to report to you where: 

• the Treasurer's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the 
financial statements is not appropriate; or 

• the Treasurer has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material 
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Authority's ability to continue 
to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months 
from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

Other information 

The Treasurer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
Narrative report together with all other information included in the Statement of Accounts, 
other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the 
financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent 
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon. 
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies 
or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a 
material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other 
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Opinion on other matter required by the Code of Audit Practice 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial 
statements, the other information published together with the financial statements in the 
Statement of Accounts is consistent with the financial statements. 

Conclusion on use of resources 

On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion published 
by the National Audit Office in November 2017, we are satisfied that, in all significant 
respects, the Authority put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2019. 

Basis for conclusion on use of resources 

We have undertaken our review of the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources in accordance with the Code of Audit 
Practice, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion, published by the 
National Audit Office in November 2017, as to whether in all significant respects, the 
Authority had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and 
deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local 
people. 

The National Audit Office has determined this criterion as that necessary for us to consider 
in satisfying ourselves whether the Authority put in place proper arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 
2019. 

Based on our risk assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary. We 
believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our conclusion. 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following other matters which the Code of 
Audit Practice requires us to report to you if: 

• we have been unable to satisfy ourselves that the Annual Governance Statement is 
misleading or inconsistent with other information that is forthcoming from the audit; 

• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Act in the course of, or 
at the conclusion of the audit; 

• we designate under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 any 
recommendation as one that requires the Authority to consider it at a public meeting 
and to decide what action to take in response; 

• we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is 
contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014; 
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• we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014; or 

• we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014. 

Responsibilities of the Treasurer and the Authority 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts, 
the Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which 
comprises the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the 
CIPFA/LASMC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom, and 
for being satisfied t hat the financial statements give a true and fair view. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Treasurer is responsible for assessing the 
Authority's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Authority 
intends to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and 
governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements. 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

In respect of our audit of the financial statements our objectives are to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is 
located at the Financial Reporting Council's website at: 
https: //www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our 
auditor's report. 

Auditor's responsibilities in respect of the Authority's use of resources 

We are required under Section 20 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy 
ourselves that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The Code of Audit Practice requires us 
to report to you our conclusion relating to proper arrangements, having regard to relevant 
criterion specified by the National Audit Office. 

We report if significant matters have come to our attention which prevent us from 
concluding that the Authority has put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor 
have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority's arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively. 

Certificate of completion of the audit 

We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough Fire Authority in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice issued by the National Audit Office. 
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Use of our report 

This report is made solely to the members of Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Fire 
Authority, as a body, in accordance with part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014 and as set out in the Responsibilities of the Audited Body and Responsibility of the 
Auditor within Chapter 2 of the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit 
Office. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the members of the 
Authority those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor"s report and for no 
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 
responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the Authority's members, as a body, 
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

Lisa Clampin 
For and on behalf of BOO LLP, Appointed Auditor 
Ipswich, UK 

31 July 2019 

BOO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered 
number 0(305127). 
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Glossary 

AAA FITCH RATING 
Highest cred it quality - 'AAA' ratings denote the lowest expectation of credit risk. They are assigned only in 
case of exceptionally strong capacity for timely payment of financial commitments. This capacity is highly 
unlikely to be adversely affected by foreseeable events. 

AA FITCH RATING 
Very high credit quality - 'AA' ratings denote a very low expectation of credit risk. They indicate very strong 
capacity for timely payment of financial commitments. This capacity is not significantly vulnerable to 
foreseeable events. 

A FITCH RATING 
High credit quality - 'A' ratings denote a low expectation of credit risk. The capacity for timely payment of 
financial commitments is considered strong. This capacity may, nevertheless, be more vu lnerable to 
changes in circumstances or in economic conditions than is the case for higher ratings. 

ACCOUNTING PERIOD 
The period of time covered by the accounts, normally a period of twelve months commencing on 1 April. 
The end of the accounting period is the Balance Sheet date. 

ACCRUALS 
Sums included in the final accounts to recognise revenue and capital income and expenditure earned or 
incurred in the financial year, but for which actual payment had not been received or made as at 31 March. 

ACTUARIAL GAINS AND LOSSES 
For a defined benefit pension scheme, the changes in actuarial surpluses or deficits that arise because: 
• Events have not coincided w ith the actuarial assumptions made for the last valuation (experience gains 
and losses); or 
· The actuarial assumptions have changed 

ASSET 
An item having value to the Authority in monetary terms. Assets are categorised as either current or non
current 
• A current asset will be consumed or cease to have material value within the next financial year (e.g. cash 
and stock); 
· A non-current asset provides benefits to the Authority and to the services it provides for a period of more 
than one year and may be tang ible e.g. a community centre, or intangible, e.g. computer software licences. 

AUDIT OF ACCOUNTS 
An independent examination of the Authority's f inancia l affairs. 

BALANCE SHEET 
A statement of the recorded assets, liabilities and other balances at the end of the accounting period. 

BORROWING 
Using cash provided by another party to pay for expenditure, on the basis of an agreement to repay the 
cash at a future point, usually incurring additional interest charges over and above the original amount. 

BUDGET 
A statement of the Fire Authority's policy expressed in financia l terms. 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 
Expenditure on the acquisition of non-current assets or expenditure, which adds to the value of existing 
non-current assets, (i.e. over and above maintenance). 
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CAPITAL FINANCING 

Funds raised to pay for capital expenditure. There are various methods of financing capital expenditure 
including borrowing, leasing, direct revenue financing, usable capital receipts, capital grants, capital 
contributions, revenue reserves and earmarked reserves. 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
The capital schemes the Fire Authority intends to carry out over a specific period of time. 

CAPITAL RECEIPTS 

Income from the sale of assets. Such income may only be used to repay loan debt or to finance new capital 
expenditure. 

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy {CIPFA) 
The principal accountancy body dealing with local government finance . 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 
The account of the Fire Authority that reports the net cost for the year of the functions for which it is 
responsible and demonstrates how that cost has been financed from precepts, grants and other income. 

CONSISTENCY 
The concept that the accounting treatment of like items within an accounting period and from one period 
to the next are the same. 

CONTINGENT ASSETS 
A possible asset arising from past events, whose existence will only be confirmed by future events not 
wholly within the Fire Authority's control. 

CONTINGENT LIABILITY 
A contingent liability is either: 
· A possible obligation arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence 
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the Fire Authority's control; or 
· A present obligation arising from past events where it is not probable that a transfer of economic benefits 
will be required, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. 

CREDITORS 
Amounts owed by the Fire Authority for which payment has not been made by the end of the financial year. 

CURRENT SERVICE COST {PENSIONS) 
The increase in the present va lue of a defined benefits pension scheme's liabilities, expected to arise from 
employee service in the current period. 

DEBTORS 
Amounts due to the Fire Authority but unpaid at the end of the financial year. 

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEME 
Pension schemes in which the benefits received by the participants are independent of the contributions 
paid and are not directly related to the investments of the scheme. 

DEPRECIATION 

The measure of the cost of wearing out, consumption or other reduction in the useful economic life of the 
Fire Authority's non-current assets. 

EQUITY 
The Fire Authority's value of total assets less total liabilities. 
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EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, favourable or unfavourable, that occur between t he 
Balance Sheet date and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. 

EXPECTED RETURN ON PENSION ASSETS 
For a funded defined benefit scheme, this is the average rate of return, including both income and changes 
in fair value but net of scheme expenses, which is expected over the remaining life of the related obligation 
on the actual assets held by the scheme. 

FAIR VALUE 
The fair value of an asset is the price at which it could be exchanged in an arm's length transaction. 

FINANCE LEASE 
A lease that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of a fixed asset to the lessee. 

GOING CONCERN 
The concept that the Statement of Accounts is prepared on the assumption that the Fire Authority wi ll 
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. 

GOVERNMENT GRANTS 
Grants made by the government towards either revenue or capital expenditure in return for past or future 
compliance with certain conditions relating to the activities of the Fire Authority. These grants may be 
specific to a particular scheme or may support the revenue spend of the Fire Authority in general. 
IMPAIRMENT 
A reduction in the value of a fixed asset to below its recoverable amount, the higher of the asset's fair value 
less costs to sell and its value in use. 

INJURY AWARD 
An injury award compensates an individual for the potentia l loss of earnings for inj ury sust ained whilst on 
duty that resu lts in some level of disablement which hinders or prevents them from working in the future. 
An injury award is a life time award . 

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
An intangible (non-physica l) item may be defined as an asset when access to the future economic benefits 
it represents is controlled by the reporting entity. This Fire Authority's intangible assets comprise computer 
software licences. 

INTEREST COST (PENSIONS) 
For a defined benefit scheme, the expected increase during the period of the present value of the scheme 
liabilities because the benefits are one period closer to settlement. 

LIABILITY 
A liability is where the Fire Authority owes payment to an individual or another organisation. 
· A current liability is an amount which will become payable or could be called in within the next accounting 
period, e.g. creditors or cash overdrawn. 
• A deferred liability is an amount which by arrangement is payable beyond the next year at some point in 
the future or to be paid off by an annual sum over a period of time. 

LIQUID RESOURCES 
Current asset investments that are readily disposable by the Fire Authority without disrupting its business 
and are either: 
· Readily convertible to known amounts of cash at or close to the carrying amount; or 
• Traded in an active market. 

LONG TERM BORROWING 
Loans raised to finance capital spending which have still to be repaid. 
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LONG-TERM CONTRACT 
A contract entered into for the design, manufacture or construction of a single substantial asset or the 
provision of a service (or a combination of assets or services which together constitute a single project), 
where the time taken to substantially complete the contract is such that the contract activity falls into more 
than one accounting period. 

MATERIALITY 
The concept that the Statement of Accounts should include all amounts which, if omitted, or mis-stated, 
cou ld be expected to lead to a distortion of the financial statements and ult imately mislead a user of the 
accounts. 

NET BOOK VALUE 
The amount at which fixed assets are included in t he Balance Sheet, i .e. their historical costs or current 
value less the cumulative amounts provided for depreciation. 

NET DEBT 
The Authority's borrowings less cash and liquid resources . 

OPERATING LEASE 
A lease where the ownership of the fixed asset remains with the lessor. 

PAST SERVICE COST (PENSIONS) 
For a defined benefit pension scheme, the increase in the present value of the scheme liabilities related to 
employee service in prior periods arising in the current period as a result of the introduction of, or 
improvement to retirement benefits. 

PENSION SCHEMES 
a) Retirement Benefits 
All forms of consideration given by an employer in exchange for services rendered by employees that are 
payable after the completion of employment. Retirement benefits do not include termination benefits 
payable as a result of: (i) an employer's decision to terminate an employee's employment before the normal 
retirement date or (ii) an employee's decision to accept redundancy in exchange for those benefits, because 
these are not given in exchange for services rendered by employees. 
b) Scheme Liabilities 
The liabilities of a defined benefit scheme for outgoings due after the valuation date. Scheme liabil ities 
measured using the projected unit met hod reflects the benefits that the employer is commit ted to provide 
for service up to the valuation date. 

PRECEPTING 

The Fire Authority is deemed a major precepting authority and now has the power to levy a focal Council 
Tax charge on the local taxpayer. 

PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT 
Material adjustments applicable to previous years arising from changes in accounting policies or from the 
correction of fundamental errors. This does not include normal recurring corrections or adjustments of 
accounting estimates made in prior years. 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
Tangible assets that yield benefits to the Fire Au thority for a period of more than one year. 

PROVISION 
An amount put aside in the accounts for future liabilities or losses which are certain or very likely to occur 
but the amounts or dates of when they will arise are uncertain. 

PUBLIC WORKS LOAN BOARD (PWLB) 
The government body that provides local authority loans. 
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RELATED PARTIES 
There is a detailed definition of related parties in FRS 8. For the Council's purposes related parties are 
deemed to include the Fire Authority's members, the Chief Executive, its Directors and their close fam ily 
and household members. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
The Statement Of Recommended Practice requires the disclosure of any material transactions between the 
Authority and related parties to ensure that stakeholders are aware when these transactions occur and the 
amount and implications of such. 

REMUNERATION 
Al l sums paid to or receivable by an employee and sums due by way of expenses allowances (as far as 
those sums are chargeable to UK income tax) and the money value of any other benefits. Received other 
than in cash. Pension contributions payable by the employer are excluded. 

RESERVES 
The accumulation of surpluses, deficits and appropriations over past years. Reserves of a revenue nature 
are avai lable and can be spent or earmarked at the discretion of the Fire Authority. Some capital reserves 
such as the fixed asset restatement account cannot be used to meet current expenditure. 

RESIDUAL VALUE 
The net realisable value of an asset at the end of its useful life. 

REVENUE EXPENDITURE AND INCOME 
Expenditure and income arising from the day to day operation of the Fire Authority. 

REVENUE SUPPORT GRANT 
A grant paid by Central Government to authorities, contributing towards the general cost of their services. 

ROYAL INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED SURVEYORS (RICS) 
The body dealing with property surveys. 

STOCKS 
Items of raw materials and stores an authority has procured and holds in expectation of future use. 
Examples are consumable stores, raw materials and products and services in intermediate stages of 

completion. 

USEFUL ECONOMIC LIFE (UEL) 
The period over which the Fire Authority will derive benefits from the use of a fixed asset. 
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